
Planning Board Minutes, November 18, 2015 1 

Borough of Franklin Lakes 
Bergen County, New Jersey 

Planning Board Minutes 
November 18, 2015 

 
Meeting Called to Order at 7:30PM 
 
Open Public Meetings Statement: Read into the record by Acting 
Chairman Lauber. 
 
Salutation to the Flag 
 
Preamble: Read into the record by Mr. Lauber. 
 
Fire Safety Announcement: Read into the record by Mr. Lauber. 
 
Roll Call: Mayor Bivona (absent), Councilman Kahwaty (absent), Messrs. 
Gostkowski, Lauber, Pullaro, Chairwoman Vierheilig (absent), Messrs. 
Lazerowitz (absent), Linz, Sheppard, Ms. Mucci (absent; arrived at 
7:45PM), Mr. Ochs (absent) 
 
Also in Attendance: Mark Madaio Esq., Board Attorney; Ms. Maria 
Berardi, Planning Board Secretary; JoAnn Carroll, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Board Discussion: None 
 
 
Approval of Minutes: 
September 2, 2015 
September 21, 2015, Special Meeting of the M&C and PB 
October 7, 2015, Special Meeting of the M&C and PB 
October 7, 2015 
 
Motion to table the approval of minutes until the next scheduled meeting: Pullaro, 
Sheppard 
All in Favor 
 
Oral Communications: 
 
No Board or public comment 
 
New Business: 
Schloesser, Major Subdivision, Conceptual Review, 233 & 237 Woodside 
Avenue, Block 2703, Proposed Lots 3.01, 3.02 & 3.03 



Planning Board Minutes, November 18, 2015 2 

Bruce Whitaker, Esq., McDonnell & Whitaker, attorney for the applicant: 
representing property owners; thanked the Board for the opportunity to appear 
before them this evening; was before the Board for a Conceptual Review; before the 
Board with the understanding that what is stated cannot be held against the 
applicant nor the Board; the Schloessers own the property; their son, Paul, lives on 
another lot; in 2000, there was a subdivision done; Paul lives next to his mother and 
father; the daughter/sister, Donna, wants to build a house on a created lot next to 
her family; in 2000 when the Board approved the subdivision, the deed stated that 
in the event of a future subdivision, the Planning Board has the right to review it 
again to determine if the requirements of the ordinance and RSIS would have to be 
complied with; it is not a mandate; it is an expensive process for the Schloessers to 
subdivide the property; looking for feedback to get a sense if it is feasible; Boswell’s 
review has been received; one of the items concerns the roadway and fire safety; the 
concept is to keep the remaining road in place; it is a well maintained road and 
would extend to a cul-de-sac so there is a turn-around; three homes are currently 
serviced by the road now; there would be a fourth home serviced by the roadway 
with this proposed subdivision; the additional home would have no impact on 
safety; there is a DEP requirement for approval also; any approval given by the 
Board would be subject to all other governmental approvals; (Board Secretary 
handed Mr. Whitaker Mr. Linz’s fire safety review at this point of the meeting);  Mr. 
Bob Weissman, applicant’s architect, reviewed the plans for the Board; described 
extension of what currently exists; showed Woodside Terrace to Woodside Avenue 
which would end in a cul-de-sac with a turn-around; 45’ cartway; 50’ right of way 
radius; fully conforming lots; the location of the house would be in compliance 
except the lot on proposed Lot 3.02; existing dwelling; the house can be placed in a 
conforming location in regards to setbacks when it is time for construction; the 
intent is to keep Paul’s lot, 3.01, in close configuration to what exists today; existing 
garage, barn and shed would be removed as part of the approval process; new home 
would be constructed for Donna and her husband John on 3.03; this house would be 
built in a conforming location; new well to be drilled for 3.03; realize there would be 
restrictions to what can be done with the roadway; not quite compliant with RSIS; it 
is a rural roadway; the fourth lot would have a full stone turn-around area for its 
access; emergency access would be available to the site. 
 
Mr. Whitaker: asked if emergency vehicles would have access based on the fire 
safety report. 
 
Mr. Weissman: stated yes; height is not a problem; further stated that a more 
conventional turn-around would be constructed with improvements. 
 
Mr. Whitaker: stated, in regards to the existing house, it there comes a time when 
the property is conveyed, there can be a restriction in the deed that a conforming 
house would need to be built. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: asked how wide the existing gravel driveway was off of Woodside. 
 



Planning Board Minutes, November 18, 2015 3 

Mr. Weissman: stated it was 16 ft.; the plan does state 10 ft. but that is a typo. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: asked if it could be pushed more to the north. 
 
Mr. Weissman: stated there is a right of way that traverses through Lots 2 and 2.01; 
there is enough width. 
 
Please note: Ms. Mucci has arrived at this point of the meeting, 7:45PM. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: asked if the applicant was proposing to keep the gravel. 
 
Mr. Weissman: stated stone was proposed for the entire area. 
 
Mr. Sheppard: asked if the original application was a minor subdivision. 
 
Mr. Whitaker: stated the original application was a major subdivision due to the 
variance relief sought. 
 
Mr. Weissman: stated there were originally two homes on the site which were 
served by the road; then one lot was subdivided into two lots; Paul lives on the 
second lot; it is basically making two lots out of one to subdivide; 3.02 and 3.03 from 
existing homestead lot with the proviso of a formal dedication of a right of way and 
cul-de-sac turn-around. 
 
Mr. Sheppard: asked if the applicant had considered widening the road to make it a 
conforming street. 
 
Mr. Weissman: stated the property that abuts the lots have no interest in putting a 
fully paved road by their home. 
 
Mr. Sheppard: asked if the Board were now being asked to add another lot to a 
non-conforming street. 
 
Mr. Madaio: stated it is a gravel path, not a street; the quandary for the Board is the 
idea of adding a lot to this path while continuing to maintain the same level of safety. 
 
Mr. Whitaker: referred to the MLUL; the cul-de-sac would more formalize the turn-
around for vehicles; it would be a new concept for the way vehicles enter and exit 
the property. 
 
Mr. Gostkowski: asked who would be responsible for maintaining the road. 
 
Mr. Whitaker: stated the homeowners. 
 
Mr. Linz: stated it looks tight were the roadway comes in and the new roadway 
would start. 



Planning Board Minutes, November 18, 2015 4 

 
Mr. Weissman: stated he can provide a radius of 20’ at that location. 
 
Mr. Linz: stated the trees and shrubbery on the existing road need to be trimmed 
back; it is overgrown; the roadway itself is in good shape. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: asked if Lot 2.02 could be further subdivided in the future. 
 
Mr. Whitaker: stated there could be a restrictive covenant that there be no further 
development. 
 
Mr. Lauber: stated he had visited the site this same day and his reaction was the 
site would be crowded with the addition of another house. 
 
Mr. Gostkowski: asked who does the snow plowing at this time for the site. 
 
Mr. Schloesser: stated he does the plowing for the whole road. 
 
Mr. Madaio: stated this works at this time because the three members of the family 
will live in one area; at some point, there won’t be three family members; 
maintenance might be an issue; may want to think about it at this time. 
 
Mr. Whitaker: stated it would not be a problem; it would be recorded in the deeds 
for the properties so everyone is on notice going forward. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: stated safety is an issue; if enough testimony is given from experts that 
the site is safe then an approval could be in order; if there is one iota of the site 
being unsafe, then he would not be in favor of the application. 
 
Mr. Lauber: stated this would be a good location to put in a full cul-de-sac. 
 
Mr. Linz: stated he agreed; a full cul-de-sac makes for a good staging area. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: stated there would be no further development on the site so there 
would not be a need for a full cul-de-sac; further stated the Board would need to 
hear from the Police and Fire Departments regarding the site. 
 
Mr. Weissman: stated the turn could be widened. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: asked if 16 ft. is okay entering the site. 
 
Mr. Linz: stated yes; it is existing; as long as an apron of 2 ft. is kept on either side it 
should be enough; but the area still needs to be trimmed back. 
 
Brief discussion had at this point regarding the ownership of the trees and the 
trimming that needs to be done. 



Planning Board Minutes, November 18, 2015 5 

 
Mr. Sheppard: asked about the gravel and what types of standards are going to be 
requested. 
 
Mr. Madaio: stated the road will have to be maintained; one idea is a homeowner’s 
association; the cul-de-sac is just an extension of the way into the site; the engineer 
can set a standard. 
 
Mr. Sheppard: stated as long as the family is on site there are no questions about 
the maintenance, but years from now there will be a question regarding the 
maintenance of the road when other families move in; believes tarring the road 
would be the best option. 
 
Mr. Madaio: stated the exact issue exists today; Woodside Terrace will come in and 
dogleg right; then circle at the end which will be some very nice gravel; almost will 
look like a compound containing several homes as opposed to what we think of as a 
cul-de-sac. 
 
Mr. Whitaker: stated this has been done before; the maintenance of the roadway is 
what the Borough directs through their engineer and emergency personnel; not up 
to the h/o to decide; the applicant will abide by whatever the engineer requires. 
 
Mr. Madaio: asked who would be paying the Borough Engineer to check and issue 
directives; what happens when the h/o does not chip in his amount toward the 
maintenance of the road. 
 
Mr. Whitaker: stated that is a private problem; the Homeowner’s Association 
would have a fund for the road maintenance; they could seek legal action on the h/o 
who did not contribute; there would be a lien placed on his property. 
 
Mr. Weissman: stated tar is not a bad idea; would have to bring in a lot of stone 
every couple of years to maintain the gravel. 
 
Mr. Linz: stated the road would have to meet Boswell’s approval to handle the 
weight of a fire truck. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: reiterated the fact the applicant was before the Board this evening for 
a Conceptual Review only; he liked the idea of no further development of the site.  
 
Mr. Madaio: stated the applicant would have to appear before the Board for a 
Completeness Review; the date would most likely be January 20, 2016. 
 
Mr. Whitaker: thanked the Board for their time and input. 
Ms. Berardi: stated there are no applications before the Board at this time and 
asked if the December 2, 2015 meeting could be cancelled. 



Planning Board Minutes, November 18, 2015 6 

 
Mr. Lauber: stated there will be a meeting held on November 23, 2015 regarding 
Express Scripts; did not want to cancel the December 2, 2015 meeting in case more 
time was needed for Express Scripts. 
 
Mr. Madaio: stated he would have an attorney fill in for him because he would not 
be able to attend the meeting on November 23, 2015; his replacement has been fully 
briefed on the Express Scripts application. 
 
Mr. Lauber: stated he did have some questions regarding the childcare center and 
the maintenance of the buildings. 
 
Mr. Madaio: stated all items can be addressed at the November 23, 2015 meeting. 
 
Vouchers: 
Mr. Mark Madaio, Planning Board Attorney 
 Meeting Attendance, 10/7/15   $300.00 
 
Motion to Approve: Linz, Sheppard 
All in Favor 
 
Motion to Adjourn: Sheppard, Lauber 
All in Favor 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:15PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted by: 
 
JoAnn Carroll 
Recording Secretary 
November 27, 2015 


